
 

TOWN OF CHARLOTTE 1 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 2 

JANUARY 7, 2015 3 

 4 

DRAFT 5 

 6 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Frank Tenney, Chair; Matt Zucker, Jonathan Fisher, Douglas 7 

Webster, Andrew Swayze (arrived 7:06 p.m.). 8 

ADMINISTRATION: Britney Tenney, Zoning Clerk. 9 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Steve Schenker. 10 

 11 
Minutes subject to correction by the Charlotte Zoning Board of Adjustment. Changes, if any, will be 12 
recorded in the minutes at the next meeting of the Board. 13 
 14 

AGENDA: 15 

 Reopening of ZBA-14-05: Request by John Illick Jr for Conditional Use 16 

approval for alterations/expansion of an existing camp, located at 2668 17 

Thompson’s Point Road. The property is in the Shoreland Seasonal Home 18 

Management District.  19 

 20 

CALL TO ORDER 21 
Mr. Tenney, Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 22 

 23 

REOPENING OF ZBA-14-05: REQUEST BY JOHN ILLICK JR FOR 24 

CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL FOR ALTERATIONS/EXPANSION OF AN 25 

EXISTING CAMP, LOCATED AT 2668 THOMPSON’S POINT ROAD. THE 26 

PROPERTY IS IN THE SHORELAND SEASONAL HOME MANAGEMENT 27 

DISTRICT 28 
Steve Schenker, agent, appeared on behalf of the request. 29 

 30 

STAFF NOTES 31 

Mr. Tenney reviewed staff notes, and noted that the request was for a reopening of a 32 

previous application. 33 

 34 

Mr. Schenker was sworn in.  35 

 36 
APPLICANT COMMENTS 37 

Mr. Schenker reviewed a miscommunication between his client and himself. Mr. Illick 38 

would like to retain a 6 bedroom classification as per 1966. A new 2014 floor plan design 39 

of the existing camp showed that one second floor bedroom would be removed and 40 

replaced with a stairway to the existing attic space. The proposed attic space was 41 

amended to show a shared office/bedroom space, which would be a bedroom that 42 

replaces the removed bedroom, said Mr. Schenker. 43 

 44 

ZBA QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 45 



CHARLOTTE ZONING BORAD OF ADJUSTMENT            01/07/2015 PAGE 2                                              

Mr. Tenney asked if the attic space was living space. Mr. Schenker replied that the attic 46 

was a categorization of space as labeled on the floor plan. Nothing was changed. It was 47 

the same as submitted, said Mr. Schenker. 48 

 49 

Ms. Tenney, ZBA Clerk, reported that based on Town records the camp was listed as 5 50 

bedrooms. A Trudell survey of the Thompson’s Point Wastewater community septic 51 

system could not be located. It appeared that community septic was calculated at 50 gpd 52 

per person per day for a total of 20,000 gallons for the entire community system annually. 53 

According to the records the Illick camp used 3,188 gallons annually, said Ms. Tenney. 54 

 55 

Ms. Tenney handed out copies of the Thompson’s Point camp usage for the prior year for 56 

ZBA review.  57 

 58 

Ms. Tenney explained that she had discussed the number of bedrooms at the Illick camp 59 

with Ben Saunders, appraiser. Mr. Saunders said that there was a corner bedroom that 60 

was accessed through another bedroom. The Lister’s consider the two rooms as one 61 

bedroom on the Town records. The Thompson’s Point camps were not typical, pointed 62 

out Ms. Tenney. 63 

 64 

Mr. Zucker asked if the corner bedroom should be counted as a separate bedroom. Ms. 65 

Tenney replied yes. The Lister’s used a “walk through” rule in counting the two 66 

bedrooms as one, said Ms. Tenney. Mr. Schenker pointed out that the first bedroom has a 67 

closet and the second bedroom did not have a closet. 68 

 69 

Mr. Fisher said that the camp went back to the 1920s. The Lister’s wouldn’t change the 70 

number of bedrooms unless there had been a change, said Mr. Fisher.  71 

 72 

Mr. Tenney said for clarification that a second floor bedroom was being taken out and 73 

replaced by a bedroom in the attic. Mr. Schenker said yes. There was no change to the 74 

square footage of the camp. The August, 2014 floor plan design stays the same and the 75 

attic square footage stays the same. The attic was just being labeled differently on the 76 

floor plan, explained Mr. Schenker. 77 

 78 

Mr. Zucker asked if the driveway area was reduced to offset the lot coverage. Mr. 79 

Schenker said that the driveway reduction was to address the lot coverage issue. 80 

 81 

Mr. Fisher asked if the applicant was proposing the same offset for the impermeable 82 

driveway area. Mr. Schenker replied that nothing was changed from the previous 83 

application to now. 84 

 85 

Mr. Fisher asked if the building materials for the shed roof, either a standing seam metal, 86 

or rubber slate, was still undecided. Mr. Schenker replied that the materials were still 87 

undecided. In the previous application the applicant was also undecided regarding siding. 88 

The matter was still being debated, said Mr. Schenker. 89 

 90 



CHARLOTTE ZONING BORAD OF ADJUSTMENT            01/07/2015 PAGE 3                                              

There was further discussion regarding a Thompson’s Point wastewater survey, 91 

conducted by Trudell. Ms. Tenney said that it was known that 79-80 percent of the 92 

Thompson’s Point camp owners had responded to the survey during the permitting 93 

approval process. The survey was missing, said Ms. Tenney. 94 

 95 

Mr. Schenker asked if the septic load for the Illick camp was a concern. Mr. Fisher 96 

explained that if the Illick camp was allocated septic for 5 bedrooms versus 6, then an 97 

amendment to the state permit would be required. Ms. Tenney said that she didn’t know 98 

what was allowed per person. The ‘known’ total allocation was for 50 gpd per person per 99 

day, clarified Ms. Tenney. 100 

 101 

Mr. Tenney pointed out that there was nothing in any paperwork that said there were 6 102 

bedrooms. It was just what the applicant claimed, said Mr. Tenney. Mr. Schenker 103 

suggested walking through the camp and counting the bedrooms. There were 6 rooms 104 

with 6 beds, said Mr. Schenker. 105 

 106 

MOTION by Mr. Swayze, seconded by Mr. Fisher, to close the hearing regarding a 107 

reopening of ZBA-14-05, a request by John Illick Jr for Conditional Use approval 108 

for alterations/expansion of an existing camp, located at 2668 Thompson’s Point 109 

Road. 110 

VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 111 
 112 

DELIBERATIONS 113 
The ZBA members entered Deliberative Session at 7:20 p.m.  114 

 115 

ADJOURNMENT 116 
The ZBA meeting was adjourned at   p.m. 117 

 118 
Minutes respectfully submitted, Kathlyn Furr, Recording Secretary. 119 
 120 


